
 

 

 
Date of issue: Monday 9th October 2017  

 
  

MEETING  LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors Cheema (Chair), Parmar (Vice-Chair), 

Coad, Davis, Arvind Dhaliwal, Qaseem, Rasib, 
A Sandhu, Sohal, Strutton and Wright) 

  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 17TH OCTOBER, 2017 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: MEETING ROOM 3, CHALVEY COMMUNITY CENTRE, 

THE GREEN, CHALVEY, SLOUGH, SL1 2SP 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

SHABANA KAUSER  
 
01753 787503 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 

 
 

ROGER PARKIN 
Interim Chief Executive 

 
AGENDA 
PART I 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 

 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 
 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in 
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare 
that interest and, having regard to the circumstances 
described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. 
 
All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form 
detailing the nature of their interest. 

 
2.   Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - 

To Note 
 

1 - 2 - 

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 27th June 
2017 
 

3 - 6 - 

 LICENSING ISSUES 
 

4.   Proposed Emission Standards for Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

7 - 132 All 

5.   Members Attendance Record 2017/18 
 

133 134 All 

6.   Date of Next Meeting 
 

- - 

 Thursday 15th February 2018 
 

  

 

Press and Public 
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of 
a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or 
recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been 
discussed with the Democratic Services Officer.  

 



PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE 

 
The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 
this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 
the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 
a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 
biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 
especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 
may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 
 
Predisposition 
 
Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 
may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 
include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 
ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 
other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 
documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 
mind”. 
 
Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 
a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 
a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 
indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 
important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 
 
Pre-determination / Bias  
 
Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 
Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 
his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  
Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 
mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 
meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 
application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 
under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 
“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 
observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 
that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 
advice. 
 
This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 
Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Committee – Meeting held on Tuesday, 27th June, 2017. 
 

Present:-  Councillors Cheema (Chair), Parmar (Vice-Chair), Davis, 
Arvind Dhaliwal, Qaseem (from 6.36pm), Rasib, A Sandhu, Sohal, 
Strutton and Wright 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor Coad 
 

PART 1 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 
None were received.  
 

2. Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition  
 
Members confirmed that they had read and understood the guidance on 
predetermination and predisposition.  
 

3. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 20th Oct 2016  
 
Resolved -  That the minutes of the last meeting held on the 20th October 

2016 be approved as a correct record.  
 

4. Establishment of a Licensing Sub-Committee and Appointment of 
Designated Chairs  
 
The Senior Democratic Services Officer introduced a report seeking 
nominations for the appointment of Designated Chairs to the Sub-Committee 
for the 2017/2018 municipal year. 
 
It was confirmed that Members of the Sub-Committee were drawn from the 
membership of the Licensing Committee on a proportional basis (2 Labour, 1 
Conservative). The Committee were advised that in the event that a 
Conservative Member was unavailable to attend a hearing, the Sub-
Committee would comprise three Labour Members.   
 
Resolved – 
 
(a)  That a Licensing Sub-Committee (drawn from the members of the 

Licensing Committee) be established as required on a proportional 
basis ( 2 Labour 1 Conservative) with terms of reference as set out in 
the Appendix to the report. 
 

(b)  That Councillors Cheema, Parmar and Rasib be appointed to act as 
designated Chairs of the Sub-Committee for the 2017/2018 Municipal 
year.  

 
(c) In the event a Conservative Councillor is unavailable, the Sub- 

Committee will comprise of three Labour Councillors.   

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 3



 

Licensing Committee - 27.06.17 

5. Proposed emission standards for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles  
 
The Licensing Manager, Mr Sims, outlined details of the proposed emission 
standards for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles in Slough as part of 
the Council’s draft Low Emission Strategy (LES). The Council was currently 
finalising its Low Emission Strategy 2017-25 in line with the Government’s 
new National Air Quality Plans. It was explained that the LES would form part 
of the Slough Air Quality Action Plan. It was brought to Members attention that 
the feasibility of implementing a Clean Air Zone in the Borough, that would 
seek to restrict access to the most polluting commercial vehicles whilst also 
actively promoting an acceleration in the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles 
(ULEV’s) was being considered.  
 
The Committee were informed that the majority of journeys taken by taxi and 
private hire vehicles were short journeys in and around Slough and the 
immediate neighbouring areas and contributed to the overall air pollution 
levels. The LES would encourage and support taxi and private hire operators 
to switch to low emission alternatives. Members were reminded that the 
results of an Ultra Low Emission Taxi Feasibility Study in 2016, had shown 
that there was interest from the taxi trade in using electric plug in vehicles. 
Consequently, in March 2017, the Government awarded Slough £157,000 to 
install seven rapid charging units for taxis in the Borough.   
 
Mr Whittles, from Low Emission Strategies Ltd, was welcomed to the meeting. 
Mr Whittles outlined details of the LES proposals for emission standard 
requirements for taxi and private hire vehicles as well as the proposed 
implementation dates.  It was noted that the Borough was well placed to 
comply with requirements, that all taxis and private hire vehicles should be 
ULEV’s by 2025; with the third highest number of electric vehicles in the 
country. In order to facilitate a switch to ULEV’s a number of incentives were 
being considered to promote the uptake of plug in taxis, including: 
 

• Dedicated ULEV taxi ranks at Slough, Burnham and Langley Railway 
Stations 

• Dedicated SMART APP for taxi drivers to book charging facilities 

• Discounted charging rates for early adopters 

• ULEV’s to be prioritised when the Council, and other public services, 
procure taxi services.  

 
Members raised a number of issues in the ensuing discussion, including the 
financial implications of purchasing the ULEV’s and consultation details. Mr 
Whittles explained that although purchasing costs for electric taxis were 
significant at present, as Slough had completed a Ultra Low Emission Taxi 
Study, Slough drivers would be eligible for the top up grant. In addition, the 
Council would be organising trade days for taxi drivers to meet with ULEV 
manufacturers and service providers to discuss opportunities. Furthermore, 
the proposed emission strategy would prompt new taxi registrations into being 
the early movers, which meant that there would be a significant number of 
second hand plug in taxis on the market by 2025. 

Page 4



 

Licensing Committee - 27.06.17 

 
The Licensing Manager outlined the proposed timetable for the public 
consultation, which would include meetings with the Taxi Associations and 
Unions. All licensed drivers would also be written to and the consultation 
publicised on the Council’s website. It was anticipated that the final proposals 
would be brought to the October 2017 meeting for consideration.      
 
Resolved -  
 
(a) That details of the report be noted. 
 
(b) That the proposed low emission standards, as set out in the report, be 

approved and are subject to consultation. 
 
(c) That all final proposals, after consultation, be considered at a future 

Committee meeting.   
 
(Mr Whittles left the meeting) 
 

6. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Statement  
 
The Senior Licensing Officer, Mrs Rumney, outlined details of the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Statement. Members were informed that 
the Licensing Statement summarised the requirements and Council’s policy 
and procedures in carrying out its duties under the licensing regime. It was 
noted that the Licensing Statement was not intended to be a comprehensive 
legal document and would be reviewed and updated on a regular basis.  
 
In response to a Member query, the Committee was informed that the 
Licensing Statement did not included any new requirements or procedures 
that had not been previously approved and therefore a consultation with the 
hackney carriage and private hire trade had not been conducted.    
 
Resolved –  That details of the revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 

Licensing Statement be noted.  
 

7. Implementation of the new provisions of Sections 165 and 167 of the 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Members were reminded that a report was considered by the Licensing 
Committee in February 2011detailing the provisions of the Equality Act 2010 
in relation to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers and Vehicles. It was 
noted that these duties now placed on all drivers of designated wheelchair 
accessible vehicles being either a taxi or a private hire vehicle which is placed 
on the Council’s list of designated vehicles and that the Council had a duty to 
maintain a list of all such designated vehicles. It was brought to Members 
attention that it was also a criminal offence for drivers of designated vehicles 
to refuse to carry passengers in wheelchairs, or to fail to provide them with 
appropriate assistance, or to charge them extra. 

Page 5



 

Licensing Committee - 27.06.17 

The Licensing Manager informed the Committee that the Secretary of State 
had advised that local authorities put in place transitional arrangements and 
procedures to ensure full implementation of the requirements of the Act by 1st 
October 2017. The Committee were informed that the Licensing Team would 
discuss with the individuals concerned as to what information would be made 
available on the website. Guidance issued to local authorities outlined the 
information to be included on the Designated Lists, including details of the 
make and model of the vehicle, specifying whether the vehicle is a taxi or 
private hire vehicle and state the name of the operator.  
 
Resolved – That details of the report be noted.  
 

8. Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 by the Policing and Crime Act 
2017 and the Immigration Act 2016  
 
Mr Sims, Licensing Manager, informed the Committee on the changes to the 
Licensing Act 2003 and associated legislation to prevent illegal working and 
improve the effectiveness of the alcohol licensing regime in preventing crime 
and disorder.  
 
Members were advised that there had been a number of changes, including 
new powers to suspend/revoke licences along with new powers to safeguard 
and protect children and vulnerable adults. In particular, the following 
delegations were brought to Members attention: 
 

• Service notice on a Personal Licence holder in consideration to 
suspend or revoke the Personal Licence – Delegated to Licensing 
Manager or Senior Licensing Officer. 

• Decision to suspend or revoke a Personal Licence where the holder 
has been convicted of a relevant offence, foreign offence or required to 
pay an immigration penalty  - All cases delegated to Licensing-Sub 
Committee.  

 
Resolved -   

 
(a) That amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 be noted. 
 
(b) That the provisions for the Secretary of State to provide Statutory 
 Guidance on Protecting Children and Vulnerable Adults be noted.  
 
(c) That the amended delegations of the Licensing Committee with regard to 
 the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the report,  be approved.  
 

9. Date of Next Meeting  
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 19th October 2017. 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.55 pm) 

Page 6



  

          

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:   Licensing Committee  DATE:   17th October 2017
                  
CONTACT OFFICER:    Michael Sims, Licensing Manager 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753) 477387 
                                           Ginny de Haan, Service Lead – Regulatory Services 
                                           (01753 477912) 
     
WARD(S):   ALL 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
PROPOSED EMISSION STANDARDS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE 
HIRE VEHICLES 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

            To inform the Committee of the responses to the consultation on proposals for 
low emission standards for hackney carriage (taxi) and private hire vehicles in 
Slough and the revised proposals, as part of the Council’s draft Low Emission 
Strategy and the proposed feasibility for a Clean Air Zone. 

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 

           The Committee is requested to: 
 

(a) Note the responses to the consultation. 
(b) Note the report and comment on the revised proposals for low emission 
standards and effective dates for saloon hackney carriages and private hire 
vehicles, following the consultation  

(c) Agree that the revised proposals for low emission standards for all saloon 
vehicles be approved. 

(d) Agree any amendments to the proposed low emission standards and 
implementation following consultation. 

(e) Agree to approve the additional proposals at Section 8 of the report 
(f) Agree that a separate consultation on Low Emission Standards for 
Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles is to be conducted.  
 

3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
         The European Union Air Quality Directive 2008/50/EC13 sets out the 
         obligations for Members States in terms of assessing ambient air quality and 
         ensuring that Limit Values (“LV”) for certain pollutants are not exceeded. In the 
         UK, the  requirements of the Directive have been transposed into domestic law 
         through the Environment Act 1995 and subordinate regulation 14.15.  
 
         Slough is finalising its draft Low Emission Strategy (“LES”) for consultation later 
         this year in line with the Government’s new National Air Quality Plans, published 
         on the 5th May 2017. The Slough LES forms part of the Slough Air Quality Action 
         Plan and includes measures to reduce emissions from road transport vehicles, the 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



  

         main cause of elevated levels of Nitrogen Dioxide (“NO2”) and a key contributor to 
         particulate matter (“PM”) concentrations in the Borough. Both NO2 and PM have 
         significant health impacts for the residents of Slough. 
 
         The revised proposals in this report once approved will be included in the Slough 
         Low Emission Strategy for taxi and private hire vehicles and will have a significant 
         impact in reducing pollutants and contribute to Councils duty to improve air quality 
         in Slough. 
 
3a.    Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  
 
         The revised proposals for low emission standards to be included in the Slough 
         “LES” will support the Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy priorities: 
 
         Priorities  
 

• Increasing life expectancy by focusing in inequalities 

• Improving mental health and wellbeing.  
 
3b. Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 

The proposals will contribute significantly to the Five Year Plan with the specific 
outcomes of: 

 

• Our children and young people will have the best start in life and opportunities 
to give them positive lives. 

• Our people will become healthier and will manage their own health, care and 
support needs. 

• Slough will be an attractive place where people choose to live, work and visit. 

• Slough will attract, retain and grow businesses and investment to provide jobs 
and opportunities for our residents. 

 
4.  Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  
 
There are no financial implications of proposed action. 
 
(b) Risk Management  

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s) 

From section 2 above 
 

The main threat will be that 
of some current licensed 
vehicles having to meet the  
proposed emission 
standard requirement. 
However as vehicles reach 
the vehicle age limits they 
will be replaced by vehicles 
that do meet the emission 
standards. 
 

 

As Slough is under a 
duty to decrease air 
pollution levels the 
proposed emission 
standards will contribute 
significantly to this. 
There are no issues of 
inequalities as the 
emission standards will 
apply equally to all taxi 
and private hire vehicles. 

 
 

Page 8



  

(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 

1. Section 1 and Schedule 1 Parts I & II of The Human Rights Act 1998 apply: 
 

Article 1 – Every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his or her 
possessions including the possession of licence and shall not be deprived of 
the possession except in the public interest. 

 
Article 6 – That in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is 
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal established by law. 

 
2. The  Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, allows the Local 
      Authority to set standards for the granting of taxi and private hire vehicle 
      licenses. 
 

3. There is a legal requirement to improve and maintain air quality standards. 
 The European Union Air Quality Directive 2008/50/EC13 sets out the 

               obligations for Members States in terms of assessing ambient air quality and 
 ensuring Limit Values (LV) for certain pollutants are not exceeded. The 
 requirements of the Directive have been transposed into domestic law through 
 the Environment Act 1995 and subordinate regulation 14.15.  

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   

 
An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed at this time as there 
are no equality issues identified, since the proposals would apply to any   
proprietor of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle in similar 
circumstances. 

 
5. Supporting Information 
 
5.1   A report was put before the Licensing Committee on 27th June 2017 outlining that 
        SBC is finalising its Low Emission Strategy draft (LES 2017-25) in line with the 
        Government’s new National Air Quality Plans, published on the 5th May 2017. The 
        Slough LES forms part of the Slough Air Quality Action Plan and includes 
        measures to reduce emissions from road transport vehicles, the main cause of 
        elevated levels of NO2 and a key contributor to PM concentrations in the Borough. 
        Both NO2 and PM have significant health impacts for the residents of Slough. 
 
5.2   There are currently 726 licensed hackney carriages (taxis) and private hire 
        vehicles operating in Slough. The revised chart of current vehicles below, details a 
        breakdown of the fuel types for each category of vehicle.  
 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE 

Total 107 

Diesel 98 

Petrol 6 

Hybrid Electric/Petrol 2 

Hybrid Electric/Diesel 1 

 

PRIVATE HIRE 

Total 619 

Diesel 527 

Page 9



  

Petrol 29 

Duel Fuel 1 

Hybrid Electric/Petrol 62 

 
 
5.3   The previous report detailed that the majority of the journeys taken by taxi and 
        private hire vehicles are short journeys in and around the Slough and immediate 
        neighbouring areas and therefore contribute to overall air pollution. Although the 
        licensed vehicles make up a small proportion of the overall number of vehicles in 
        the Slough area, they do emit a higher proportion of NO2 and are a key contributor 
        to PM in the area. 
 
5.4   Taxi and private hire vehicles can be part of the solution, by showcasing the 
        potential for low emission vehicles and ‘normalising’ their use to the thousands of 
        passengers they carry each year. The Slough Low Emission Strategy will 
        encourage and support taxi and private hire operators to switch to low emission 
        alternatives and consider what policy incentives will support taxi and private hire  
        operators to make the change. 
 
5.5   Mr Andrew Whittles (Low Emission Strategies Ltd) who is working with Mr 
        Jason Newman the SBC Environmental Quality Manager prepared a briefing 
        note (Appendix A) on the draft Slough Low Emission Strategy proposals, 
        previously put before the Licensing Committee in June 2017, specifically in relation 
        to taxi and private hire vehicles, which detailed the original proposals including 
        implementation dates  
 
5.6   The current EU emission standards and implementation dates for both diesel and 
        petrol vehicles, as detailed in the original proposals are attached at Appendix B.  
 
5.7   A full consultation on the original proposals was conducted between 10th July and 
        28th August 2017 by writing to and emailing all current hackney carriage and 
        private hire drivers, vehicle licence holders and operators, as well as being posted 
        on the Council website.  
 
5.8   The response to the consultation was fairly low. The individual responses via the  
        Council website are attached at Appendix C, a breakdown of the number of  
        responses from each type of responder is attached at Appendix D and other 
        individual response received are attached at Appendix E.  
 
5.9   In summary, those responses from the hackney carriage and private hire trade 
        were supportive of the proposals.   However the main views and opinion were 
        the cost of replacing vehicles to meet the criteria and the proposed implementation 
        dates. In light of some of the responses made, the original proposals have been 
        revised and detailed at paragraph 7.2 below. 
 
6.     Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
6.1   The current Vehicle Age Policies for both Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
        Vehicles are attached at Appendices F and G. In summary, all private hire 
        vehicles and saloon hackney carriages must be under 5 years of age from first 
        registration to be licensed and can be licensed to a maximum of 9 years of age 
        with 6 monthly testing from 6 years of age. For wheelchair accessible vehicles they 
        must be under 5 years of age from the date of first registration to be licenced and 
        can then be licensed indefinitely, dependant on 6 monthly testing at 14 years. 

Page 10



  

 
 
7.     Revised Proposals (Saloon Hackney Carriages and Private hire Vehicles)  
 
7.1   The rationale for the revised low emission standards is based on the current age of  
        licenced vehicles, the  current vehicle age policy for private hire vehicles and 
        saloon hackney carriages and the implementation dates of  Euro emission 
        standards of: 
         
        Euro 6 Diesel (September 2014) 
        Euro 5 Petrol (September 2009) 
        Euro 6 Petrol (September 2014).  
  
 7.2  The below proposals will apply to all saloon hackney carriages and private hire 
        vehicles as well as any temporary replacement vehicle. 

 

Compliance Dates & 
Emission Standard   

Vehicle to be Licensed 

1st September 2018 
ULEV** Standard  

All new vehicles to be licensed by new 
applicants on or after that date. ***  

1st September 2018 
CAZ Standard (Euro 6 diesel / 
Euro 5 petrol) 

All licensing renewals i.e. renewals of currently 
licensed vehicles. 

1st September 2018 
CAZ Standard (Euro 6 diesel / 
Euro 5 petrol) 

All new vehicles to be licensed by current 
licence holders i.e. where the current licensed 
vehicle needs to be replaced *** 

1st September 2020 
CAZ Standard (Euro 6 diesel / 
Euro 6 petrol) 

All new vehicles to be licensed by current 
licence holders  i.e. where the current licensed 
vehicle needs to be replaced *** 

ULEV from 2025 All licensing renewals i.e. renewals of current 
vehicles and all new vehicles to be licensed. 

 

*Clean Air Zone 
**A vehicle that uses low carbon technologies and emits less than 75g of CO2/km from the 
tailpipe and is capable of operating in zero tailpipe emission mode for a range of at least ten 
miles. 
*** Any ULEV** Standard vehicle must only be replaced by another ULEV ** Standard vehicle. 

 
7.3   The Council will be holding ‘Trade’ days when vehicle owners can meet with 
        ULEV manufacturers and service providers to discuss opportunities. 
 
7.4   Saloon drivers qualify for a Plug-in Car Grant of (about £4.5k)  
         
8.     Additional Proposals 
 
8.1   To promote the take up of ULEV vehicles the following proposals are being made 
        to be agreed by the Committee. 
 

(a) That annually, the first 20 fully Electric and Plug-in ULEV vehicles i.e. as at ** 
above, to be licensed on or after 1st September 2018 will not pay a licence fee 
for the first 2 years. 
 

(b) The first 20 Electric and Plug-in ULEV vehicles will receive the first 50 charge 
events free. 

 

Page 11



  

(c) The vehicle age for saloon vehicles that are fully Electric, Plug-in ULEV  i.e. 
that meet ** above, the age limit will be extended from 9 years to 12 years and 
will apply to all new and existing vehicles that meet the criteria. 
 

9.     Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles. 
 
9.1   The proposed setting of low emission standards impacts most on those proprietors 
         of wheelchair accessible vehicles.  
 

• There are currently 50  licensed wheelchair accessible vehicles 

• 33 vehicles are over 10 years of age with the oldest vehicle being 20 years of 
age. 

• Only 2 currently licensed vehicles would comply with the revised proposals 

• The current vehicle age policy for wheelchair accessible vehicles allows vehicles 
to be licensed indefinitely subject to twice yearly testing at 14 years 

 
9.2   For the above reasons it is proposed to conduct a separate consultation for 
        wheelchair accessible vehicles and hold meetings with the representatives and 
        proprietors to discuss replacing existing vehicles with ULEV vehicles, Electric 
        vehicles, Plug-in ULEV vehicles and the availability and use of rapid charging 
        units as detailed in (Appendix A). 
 
9.3   The previous report also outlined that the London Taxi Company will be producing 
        a new range extended electric London Taxi which will be on the market later this 
        year. The cost for this new London Taxi will be in the region of £33k with the top up 
        grant (about £7.5k, including the Plug-in Car Grant)) available from the 
        Government. In addition, the Nissan eNV 200 electric taxi is also available and 
        qualifies for the Plug-in Car Grant (about £4.5k) and costs around £20k. As Slough 
        completed an Ultra-Low Emission Taxi Study, Proprietors of Wheelchair  
        Accessible vehicles drivers will qualify for the top up Grants, in addition to the Plug- 
        in Car Grant.  
 
10.   Comments of Other Committees 
 
        On 27th June the Licensing Committee resolved -      
 

(a) That the report on the proposals for low emission standards and effective 
 dates be noted.  

 
(b) That the proposed low emission standards be approved, subject to 

 consultation. 
 

(c) That any amendments to the proposed low emission standards and 
 implementation dates prior to consultation be approved. 

  
(d) That all final proposals after consultation are brought back before Committee 

 for approval. 
 
               It was agreed that the consultation would also be published on the Council’s 
               website.  

 
 
 
 

Page 12



  

11. Conclusion 
 

That the Committee; 
 

(a) Note the responses to the consultation. 
(b) Note the report and comment on the revised proposals for low emission 
standards and effective dates for saloon hackney carriages and private hire 
vehicles, following the consultation  

(c) Agree that the revised proposals for low emission standards for all saloon 
vehicles be approved. 

(d) Agree any amendments to the proposed low emission standards  and 
implementation following consultation. 

(e) Agree to approve the additional proposals at Section 8 of the report 
(f) Agree that a separate consultation on Low Emission Standards for 
Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles is to be conducted.  

 
12. Appendices Attached  
 

‘A’ -       Original proposals Slough Low Emission Strategy for taxi and private 
                     hire vehicles (27/06/2017) 
‘B’         -       Euro Emission Standards 
‘C’         -       Consultation responses via Council website 
‘D’         -       Consultation response – type of responder 
‘E’         -       Individual Consultation responses. 

 
13. Background Papers  
 

‘1’ -      SBC Draft Low Emission Strategy   
‘2’ -      Slough Air Quality Action Plan 
‘3’          -      Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
‘4’          -      Office of Low Emission vehicles 
‘5’          -      European Union Air Quality Directive 2008/50/EC13 
‘6’         -      Hackney Carriage vehicle Age Policy 
‘7’          -      Private Hire vehicle Age Policy 
‘8’          -      Policy on minimum sizes of vehicles to be licensed. 
‘9’          -      Slough Ultra-Low Emission Taxi Feasibility Study 
 
 
  

Page 13



  

 

APPENDIX A 

 

Briefing Note - Slough Low Emission Strategy draft 

 

Taxi Emission Measures 

 

SBC is finalising its Low Emission Strategy draft (LES 2017-25) in line with the Government’s new 

National Air Quality Plans, due to be published on the 5
th

 May 2017. The LES forms part of the 

Slough Air Quality Action Plan and includes measures to reduce emissions from road transport 

vehicles, the main cause of elevated levels of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and a key contributor to 

particulate matter (PM) concentrations in the Borough. Both NO2 and PM have significant 

health impacts for the residents of Slough. 

 

The Government expects local authorities to take a lead and use available powers to reduce 

vehicle emissions where possible, including controlling emissions from taxis. Taxis operate 

mainly in the urban area where air pollution is greatest and often leave their engines idling on 

taxi ranks, where members of the public can be exposed. 

 

SBC are looking at the feasibility of implementing a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in the Borough that 

will seek to restrict access to the most polluting commercial vehicles whilst also seeking to 

promote an acceleration in the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVs). In line with the 

National Air Quality Plan, the introduction of a CAZ will also require minimum emission 

standards for taxis. Proposed minimum emission standards for taxis in Slough are shown in 

table 1. 

 

Table 1 – Proposed emission standard requirements for taxis 

 

Taxi Licensing Type Emission Standard & Compliance Dates 

All new registrations Minimum CAZ* Standard (Euro 6 diesel/4 petrol) from 1st 
January 2018 
ULEV** Standard from 1st January 2019 

All licensing renewals  CAZ Standard (Euro 6 diesel/4 petrol) from 1st January 2019 
WAV*** to comply by 1st January 2020 

All licensing renewals  ULEV from 2025 
*Clean Air Zone 

**A vehicle that uses low carbon technologies and emits less than 75g of CO2/km from the tailpipe and is capable 

of operating in zero tailpipe emission mode for a range of at least ten miles. 

***Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle (Hackney Carriage only) 

 

In 2016, SBC undertook an Ultra-Low Emission Taxi Feasibility Study, a pre-requisite for 

Government funding to support the uptake of ultra-low emission taxis. The study showed that 

there was interest from the taxi trade in using plug-in vehicles and that at around 3p per mile to 

run, Slough taxi drivers could achieve significant cost savings by switching from their diesel 

vehicles. A key issue is the availability of dedicated rapid charging facilities for taxis. 

 

In March 2017, the Government awarded Slough £157,000 to install 7 rapid charging units for 

charging taxis. These new units will be rolled out over the next 2 years at the following 

locations: 

·         Slough railway station – front entrance 

·         Slough Railway station – rear entrance 

Page 14



  

·         Harrow Market, Langley 

·         Burnham Railway station 

·         The Grove car park, town centre 

·         Burlington car park, town centre 

·         Church Street, town centre 

 

In order to facilitate a switch to ultra-low emission, plug-in taxis, it is proposed that licensing 

standards for ULEVs are introduced in line with table 1. 

 

Additionally, incentives to promote the uptake of plug-in taxis will be considered, including: 

 

• Dedicated ULEV taxi ranks at Slough, Burnham and Langley Railway Stations 

• Dedicated SMART APP for taxi drivers to book charging facilities 

• Discounted charging rates for early adopters  

• ULEVs to be prioritised when SBC, and other public services, procure taxi 
services 

 

SBC will be holding ‘Trade’ days when taxi drivers can meet with ULEV manufacturers and 

service providers to discuss opportunities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



  

 

 

APPENDIX B 

Euro emissions standards for diesel cars 

Euro 
standard Date CO NO2 PM 

Euro 1 July 1992 2.72 - 0.14 

Euro 2 
January 
1996 1.0 - 0.08 

Euro 3 
January 
2000 0.64 0.50 0.05 

Euro 4 
January 
2005 0.50 0.25 0.025 

Euro 5a 
September 
2009 0.50 0.180 0.005 

Euro 6 
September 
2014 0.50 0.080 0.005 

 

 

 

Euro emissions standards for petrol cars 

Euro 
standard Date CO NO2 PM 

Euro 1 July 1992 2.72 - - 

Euro 2 
January 
1996 2.2 - - 

Euro 3 
January 
2000 2.3 0.15 - 

Euro 4 
January 
2005 1.0 0.08 - 

Euro 5 
September 
2009 1.0 0.060 0.005 

Euro 6 
September 
2014 1.0 0.060 0.005 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



APPENDIX C

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D

Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



APPENDIX E

Page 128



 

APPENDIX F 
 

Vehicle Age Policy for Hackney Carriages Incorporating a Mixed Fleet 
Provision –  

 
                      
WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND PURPOSE BUILT VEHICLES 
 

1. This part of the policy relates to all wheelchair accessible and purpose built 
vehicles including, TX1, TX2, TX4, Metro Cabs and Eurocabs.     

 
2. Any new vehicle to be licensed as a Hackney Carriage either permanently or 

temporarily to be no older than 5 years of age from the date of first 
registration. 

 
3. The vehicle once licensed can be licensed for an indefinite period but must 

pass a Certificate of Compliance every six months on reaching 14 years of 
age. 

 
4. Any vehicle imported into the UK, the date requirements will apply from the 

date of manufacture. 
 

5. A current wheelchair accessible/purpose built Hackney Carriage licence 
holder can only replace the vehicle with another wheelchair 
accessible/purpose built vehicle as defined in paragraph 1 above.  

 
SALOON HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
 
Pending the outcomes of national consultation being conducted by the Department 
for Transport (DfT) and any future local consultation on Hackney Carriage mixed 
fleets the following will apply as an Interim Provision:- 

 
6. Any new saloon vehicle to be licensed as a Hackney Carriage vehicle either 

permanently or temporarily to be no older than 5 years from the date of first 
registration. 

 
7. Any vehicle imported into the UK, the date requirements will apply from the 

date of manufacture. 
 

8. Paragraph 6 above only relates to currently licensed saloon Hackney Carriage 
vehicle licence holders. 

 
9. The vehicle once licensed can be licensed to a maximum of 9 years from the 

date of first registration. 
 

10. Any licensed saloon vehicle may be sold to an existing Hackney Carriage 
licence holder, subject to paragraph 5 above.  

 

Page 129



11. Any licensed saloon Hackney Carriage vehicle may be replaced at any time 
with a wheelchair accessible/purpose built vehicle. 

 
      GENERAL 

 
12. During the period from this policy taking effect, and pending any subsequent 

legislation or guidance issued by the DfT on Hackney Carriage mixed fleets, 
any Hackney Carriage vehicle may be replaced with a newer vehicle of a 
similar type.  

 
13. Any vehicle to be licensed as a temporary replacement or on a temporary 

basis (e.g. where the permanent vehicle has been involved in an accident or 
been stolen, etc) must be replaced with a suitable vehicle, as agreed with the 
Council’s Licensing Officer, pending the repair or renewal of the original 
vehicle within a 3 month period. 

 
14. In all cases of transfer of vehicle, the prior written permission of the Licensing 

Officer is required. 
 

15. That this new policy and interim provision relating to saloon vehicles be fully 
reviewed when the findings, guidance and or regulations are published 
following the DfT consultation. 

 
16. Any saloon Hackney Carriage vehicle being replaced like for like during this 

interim provision period may be required to be upgraded to a wheelchair 
compliant vehicle at the end of the current licence period. 

 
 
 

Page 130



APPENDIX G 

 

 

CURRENT VEHICLE AGE POLICY FOR PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

 

 

1. Any new vehicle to be licensed as a private hire vehicle, either permanent or 
temporary, to be no older than 5 years from the date of first registration. 

 
2. That condition 1 above will apply to all new and current licence holders. 

 
3. The vehicle once licensed can be licensed to a maximum of 9 years from the 

date of first registration. 
 

4. A current licensed vehicle can be transferred to another licence holder up to 
one year under the maximum age limit. 

 
5. All vehicles to be tested annually up to six years of age. 

 
6. After six years of age vehicles to be tested six monthly. 

 
7. That for any vehicle imported into the UK, the date requirements will apply 

from the date of manufacture. 
 

8. That where it is felt that there are exceptional circumstances for a vehicle to 
be licensed either from new (over 5 years of age) or to be licensed beyond 
the permitted age limit, any requests regarding exceeding the age limit must 
be put in writing to the Licensing Office at least 60 days before the expiry of 
the licence. The criteria to be considered for exceptional circumstances will 
include one or a combination of: 

 
(a) Full service history of the vehicle 
(b) Low mileage 
(c) Excellent condition inside and out 
(d) Wheelchair accessibility 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



M
E
M
B
E
R
S
’ 
A
T
T
E
N
D
A
N
C
E
 R
E
C
O
R
D
 2
0
1
7
/1
8
 

 
L
IC
E
N
S
IN
G
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  

 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

2
7
/0
6
/1
7
 

1
7
/1
0
/1
7
 

1
5
/0
2
/1
8
 

2
8
/0
3
 

0
6
/0
6
/1
8
 

C
h
e
e
m
a
  

P
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
a
d
 

A
p
 

 
 

 
 

D
a
v
is
  

P
 

 
 

 
 

D
h
a
li
w
a
l 

P
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
rm

a
r 

P
 

 
 

 
 

Q
a
s
e
e
m
 

P
* 

 
 

 
 

R
a
s
ib
  

P
 

 
 

 
 

A
. 
S
a
n
d
h
u
  

P
 

 
 

 
 

S
o
h
a
l 
 

P
 

 
 

 
 

S
tr
u
tt
o
n
  

P
 

 
 

 
 

W
ri
g
h
t 
 

P
 

 
 

 
 

 P
  
 =
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
h
o
le
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
 

P
* 
=
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
 

 
A
p
 =
 A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

 
 

A
b
 =
 A
b
s
e
n
t,
 n
o
 a
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 27th June 2017
	4 Proposed Emission Standards for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	APPENDIX F
	APPENDIX G

	5 Members Attendance Record 2017/18

